CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

# CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

### **CONTENTS**

Page
Independent Auditor's Report1
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Activities4
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses5
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Supplementary Information
Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information
Consolidating Statement of Financial Position
Consolidating Statement of Activities



### AUDIT AND ASSURANCE

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Prostate Cancer Foundation

### **Opinion**

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prostate Cancer Foundation, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Prostate Cancer Foundation as of December 31, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Prostate Cancer Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

### **Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements**

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Prostate Cancer Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued.

#### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

### To The Board of The Directors Prostate Cancer Foundation

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Prostate Cancer Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Prostate Cancer Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

### **Report on Summarized Comparative Information**

We have previously audited Prostate Cancer Foundation's December 31, 2021 consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated August 8, 2022. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Green Hasson & Janks LLP

August 14, 2023 Los Angeles, California

# CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION December 31, 2022 With Summarized Totals at December 31, 2021

ASSETS	ithout Donor Restrictions	With Donor Restrictions	2022 Total	 2021 Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents Investments Pledges Receivable (Net) Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets Right-of-Use Asset (Note 8) Property and Equipment (Net) Intangible Assets	\$ 31,657,698 6,858,888 25,836,511 338,011 1,096,151 623,868 3,068,300	\$ 3,845,000 - 13,983,334 - - - -	\$ 35,502,698 6,858,888 39,819,845 338,011 1,096,151 623,868 3,068,300	\$ 38,576,939 - 19,610,715 229,858 - 768,268 3,375,000
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 69,479,427	\$ 17,828,334	\$ 87,307,761	\$ 62,560,780
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS				
LIABILITIES: Accounts Payable Accrued Liabilities Grants Payable (Net) Lease Liability (Net) (Note 8) Note Payable	\$ 1,018,666 2,158,323 35,949,555 1,096,151 1,687,500	\$ - - - -	\$ 1,018,666 2,158,323 35,949,555 1,096,151 1,687,500	\$ 723,595 1,756,796 23,229,447 - 2,531,250
TOTAL LIABILITIES	41,910,195	-	41,910,195	28,241,088
<b>NET ASSETS:</b> Without Donor Restrictions With Donor Restrictions	 27,569,232	- 17,828,334	27,569,232 17,828,334	17,096,164 17,223,528
TOTAL NET ASSETS	 27,569,232	17,828,334	45,397,566	 34,319,692
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS	\$ 69,479,427	\$ 17,828,334	\$ 87,307,761	\$ 62,560,780

# CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES Year Ended December 31, 2022 With Summarized Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

	ithout Donor Restrictions	With Donor Restrictions	2022 Total	2021 Total
REVENUE, PUBLIC SUPPORT AND OTHER INCOME				
Grants and Contributions	\$ 52,759,054	\$ 13,933,334	\$ 66,692,388	\$ 52,403,431
Sponsorships Other Income	5,122,375 470,395	-	5,122,375 470,395	26,660
Forgiveness of Paycheck Protection Program Loan Net Assets Released from	-	-	-	895,750
Donor Restrictions	 13,328,528	(13,328,528)		 
TOTAL REVENUE, PUBLIC SUPPORT AND OTHER INCOME	71,680,352	604,806	72,285,158	53,325,841
<b>EXPENSES:</b> Program Services Supporting Services:	49,793,252	-	49,793,252	33,592,472
Management and General Fundraising	 5,049,079 6,364,953	- -	5,049,079 6,364,953	 3,674,605 4,747,694
TOTAL EXPENSES	 61,207,284	-	61,207,284	42,014,771
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS	10,473,068	604,806	11,077,874	11,311,070
Net Assets - Beginning of Year	 17,096,164	17,223,528	34,319,692	 23,008,622
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR	\$ 27,569,232	\$ 17,828,334	\$ 45,397,566	\$ 34,319,692

### CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES Year Ended December 31, 2022 With Summarized Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

		Program	Services			Supporting	Services			
		Scientific		Health Care	Total			Total		
	Research	Conferences	Public	Provider	Program	Management		Supporting	Total Ex	
	Grants	and Programs	Awareness	Education	Services	and General	Fundraising	Services	2022	2021
Research Grants Compensation, Benefits and	\$ 36,455,898	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 36,455,898	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 36,455,898	\$ 26,339,252
Payroll Taxes Outreach, Events and Meetings Global Scientific Conferences and	-	1,812,206	2,128,428 1,739,970	896,586 2,239,806	4,837,220 3,979,776	2,901,575 -	1,483,729 3,340,633	4,385,304 3,340,633	9,222,524 7,320,409	6,341,448 3,661,147
Unpublished Data and Knowledge Exchanges Office Expenses and Other	-	2,205,267 136,501	- 168,411	-	2,205,267 304,912	152 963,674	- 498,159	152 1,461,833	2,205,419 1,766,745	233,239 1,712,344
Professional Fees Travel, Meals and Entertainment	-	173,374 28,752	422,011 188,460	-	595,385 217,212	606,817 220,003	325,788 607,023	932,605 827,026	1,527,990 1,044,238	1,683,320 697,403
Occupancy Media, Public Relations and	-	78,545	162,360 562,417	-	240,905	277,151	84,115	361,266	602,171	649,907
Publications Depreciation and Amortization		17,736	376,524		562,417 394,260	3,661 76,046	5,112 20,394	8,773 96,440	571,190 490,700	530,891 165,820
TOTAL 2022 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES	\$ 36,455,898	\$ 4,452,381	\$ 5,748,581	\$ 3,136,392	\$ 49,793,252	\$ 5,049,079	\$ 6,364,953	\$ 11,414,032	\$ 61,207,284	
TOTAL 2021 FUNCTIONAL					81%	9%	10%	·	100%	
EXPENSES	\$ 26,339,252	\$ 2,339,616	\$ 4,913,604	\$ -	\$ 33,592,472	\$ 3,674,605	\$ 4,747,694	\$ 8,422,299	•	\$ 42,014,771
					80%	9%	11%		•	100%

# CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended December 31, 2022 With Summarized Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

2022		2021
\$ 11,077,874	\$	11,311,070
- 358.000		(895,750) -
1,124,072 490,700		(233,362) 165,820
(21,691,202) (108,153) 540,074		4,611,196 338,357 -
295,071 401,527 12,720,108		(136,138) 492,338 5,227,952
(540,074)		
4,667,997		20,881,483
(39,600) (6,858,888)		(843,750) -
(6,898,488)		(843,750)
- (843,750)		895,750 -
(843,750)		895,750
(3,074,241)		20,933,483
38,576,939		17,643,456
\$ 35,502,698	\$	38,576,939
\$ 1,636,225 1,636,225	\$	- -
\$ - - - -	\$	3,375,000 (2,531,250) (843,750)
·	\$ 11,077,874 	\$ 11,077,874 \$  358,000 1,124,072 490,700  (21,691,202) (108,153) 540,074  295,071 401,527 12,720,108 (540,074)  4,667,997  (39,600) (6,858,888) (6,898,488)  (6,898,488)  (843,750)  (843,750)  (30,74,241) 38,576,939  \$ 35,502,698 \$  \$ 1,636,225 1,636,225

### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

#### **NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION**

Prostate Cancer Foundation is the world's leading philanthropic organization, funding and accelerating research for better treatments and a cure for prostate cancer.

Coalition to Cure Prostate Cancer (the Coalition) was incorporated in April 2011 under the Canada Corporations Act. The Coalition was granted charitable registration effective June 15, 2011. The Coalition's mission is to pursue research and clinical studies related to prostate and related cancers and to disseminate research reports and other educational materials related to such cancers. The Coalition is an affiliate of the Prostate Cancer Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of a service agreement, Prostate Cancer Foundation agreed to provide certain pro bono services to the Coalition, including communications and fundraising support, program service and financial administration, and facilities. In addition, Prostate Cancer Foundation has extended a guaranty to the Coalition for up to a maximum of \$100,000 to ensure that the Coalition will be able to fund research awards approved by the Coalition's Board of Directors.

Digital Science Press LLC (DSP) was formed in December 2021 for the purposes of acquiring the assets of Digital Science Press Inc. (DSP Inc.) and managing UroToday.com. UroToday.com, launched in 2002, is a global platform dedicated to delivering peer-to-peer content to meet the educational needs of medical oncologists, urologists, radiation oncologists, advanced practice providers, and other healthcare professionals who treat urologic diseases. UroToday has a global following, reaching over 2M unique users per year, consuming over 8.1M pages of education content and meeting the needs of the genitourinary cancer space that requires continuous updating from clinical trials, conferences, and peer-reviewed publications. UroToday.com publishes evidence-based clinical content organized across the site by disease, treatments, and guidelines, where the content is developed by active clinicians for their peers. Content is published each day on the website, emails are sent to registrants based upon their daily or weekly requests, and customized content emails on genitourinary oncology topics are sent 5 to 7 days per week, every week.

#### **NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES**

### (a) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Prostate Cancer Foundation, DSP, and the Coalition (collectively, the Foundation). All interorganization balances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

### (b) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

### NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

### (c) NET ASSETS

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

- Net Assets without Donor Restrictions. Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
- **Net Assets with Donor Restrictions.** Contributions restricted by donors are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from donor restrictions.

### (d) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2022, approximates its fair value.

The Foundation maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts and other investment accounts, which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Foundation has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

#### (e) INVESTMENTS

Investments in debt and equity securities with readily determinable market values are reported at fair value. Such securities are generally held in custodial investment accounts administered by financial institutions. Investment purchases and sales are accounted for on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded as earned on an accrual basis, and dividend income is recorded based upon the ex-dividend date. Realized gains and losses are calculated based upon the underlying cost of the securities traded. Unrealized gains and losses are included in investment return in the consolidated statement of activities and represent the change in the difference between the cost and fair value of investments held at the end of the fiscal year.

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

### NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

### (e) **INVESTMENTS** (continued)

Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain long-term investments, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of these investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.

### (f) REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Foundation recognizes grants, contributions and sponsorships when cash, securities, or other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or a notification of a beneficial interest are received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met. In such situations, funds received in advance are recorded as deferred revenue.

Pledges are discounted to their present value when payments are expected in future periods exceeding one year. These discounts are recorded as reductions to contribution revenue and pledges receivable and are adjusted annually. Discount rates of 3.0%-4.5% were used to calculate the present value discount on pledges receivable.

The allowance for uncollectable pledges receivable is based on historical experience with the respective donors and a review of subsequent collections. At December 31, 2022, an allowance of \$1,428,000 for uncollectable pledges receivable was deemed necessary by management.

### (g) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost if purchased or at fair value on the date of donation if donated. Depreciation and amortization are provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Computer Software 3 Years
Leasehold Improvements Shorter of Lease Term or 10 Years
Computer and Office Equipment 3 - 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 7 Years

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations when incurred, while renewals and betterments are capitalized.

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

### NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

### (h) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Foundation determines the useful lives of identifiable intangible assets after considering the specific facts and circumstances related to each intangible asset. Factors considered when determining useful lives include the history of the asset and the Foundation's long-term strategy for the use of the asset. Intangible assets that are deemed to have definite lives are amortized, generally on a straight-line basis, over their useful lives.

### (i) LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Foundation reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the book value of the assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, in which case a write-down is recorded to reduce the related asset to its estimated fair value. No material impairment losses were recognized on long-lived assets during the year ended December 31, 2022.

### (j) GRANTS

Research grants are charged against operations when authorized by the Scientific Review Committee, provided the grant is not subject to significant future conditions. Conditional grants are recognized as grant expenses and as grants payable in the period in which the grantee substantially meets the terms of the conditions. The actual payment of the grant may not occur in the year of authorization.

### (k) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET AND LEASE LIABILITY

The Foundation recognizes and measures its leases in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases. The Foundation determines if an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, at the inception of a contract and when the terms of an existing contract are changed. The Foundation recognizes a lease liability and a right-of-use (ROU) asset at the commencement date of the lease. The lease liability is initially and subsequently recognized based on the present value of its future lease payments. The implicit rate of the Foundation's lease is not readily determinable and accordingly, the Foundation uses a risk free rate based on the information available at the commencement date for the lease as the rate for present value discount calculation. The Foundation includes any renewal terms in the calculation of the right-of-use asset and related lease liability if it is determined such renewals are reasonably certain of being exercised. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less, which are not expected to be renewed beyond one year, are not recorded on the consolidated statement of financial position and are recognized as lease expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

### NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

### (k) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET AND LEASE LIABILITY (continued)

The ROU asset is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the amount of the re-measured lease liability (i.e., the present value of the remaining lease payments), plus unamortized initial direct costs, plus (minus) any prepaid (accrued) lease payments, less the unamortized balance of lease incentives received, and any impairment recognized. Lease cost for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Foundation has elected, for all underlying classes of assets, to not recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease commencement, and do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the Foundation is reasonably certain to exercise. The Foundation recognizes lease costs associated with short-term leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

### (I) INCOME TAXES

Prostate Cancer Foundation is exempt from federal taxation under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and the corresponding California provisions. The Coalition has met the requirements for charitable registration and tax exemption under the Income Tax Act of Canada. DSP, a single-member limited liability corporation, is a disregarded entity for federal taxation purposes.

In accordance with the FASB ASC Topic No. 740, *Uncertainty in Income Taxes*, the Foundation recognizes the impact of tax positions in the consolidated financial statements if that position is more likely than not to be sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Foundation performed an evaluation of uncertain tax positions and did not note any matters that would require recognition in the consolidated financial statements or which might have an effect on its tax-exempt status.

#### (m) FOREIGN CURRENCY

The accounts of the Coalition are maintained in its functional currency, which is the Canadian dollar. Assets are translated into the reporting currency at year-end exchange rates, and related revenues are translated at average rates of exchange in effect during the year.

### (n) FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The costs of providing the Foundation's programs and other activities are presented in the consolidated statement of functional expenses. During the year, such costs are accumulated into separate groupings as either direct or indirect. Indirect or shared costs are allocated among program and support services by a method that best measures the relative degree of benefit.

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

### NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

### (o) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

### (p) COMPARATIVE TOTALS

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Such information should be read in conjunction with the Foundation's consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021, from which the summarized information was derived.

### (q) RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain December 31, 2021 balances have been reclassified, where appropriate, to conform to the presentation used at December 31, 2022.

### (r) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), intended to improve financial reporting about leasing transactions. The new standard will require companies that lease assets with terms of more than 12 months to recognize on the consolidated statement of financial position, the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases. The ASU also requires disclosures to help consolidated financial statement users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. These disclosures include qualitative and quantitative requirements, providing additional information about the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements. ASC 842 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. The Foundation adopted ASC 842 with a date of the initial application of January 1, 2022, using the optional transition method, which allows entities to continue to apply historical accounting guidance in the comparative periods presented in the year of adoption. The Foundation elected to apply the following package of practical expedients on a consistent basis permitting entities not to reassess: (i) whether any expired or existing contracts are or contain a lease; (ii) lease classification for any expired or existing leases and (iii) whether initial direct costs for any expired or existing leases qualify for capitalization under the amended guidance.

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

### NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

### (r) **NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS** (continued)

The impact of adopting the amended guidance primarily relates to the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position for all leases previously classified as operating leases. The Foundation recognized a right-of-use asset of \$1,636,225 with a related lease liability of \$1,636,225 as of January 1, 2022, for its operating lease. Refer to Notes 2(k) and 8 for disclosures related to the Foundation's accounting for this lease.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology previously used for certain financial instruments with a methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates in their measurement. The guidance has subsequently been amended through a series of targeted ASUs. For the Foundation, the ASU and the subsequent amendments will be effective for the year ending December 31, 2023, and are expected to be adopted using the modified-retrospective approach.

### (s) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Foundation has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to the consolidated statement of financial position date of December 31, 2022, for items that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. The evaluation was conducted through August 14, 2023, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. No such material events or transactions were noted to have occurred.

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

#### **NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS**

The Foundation has implemented the accounting standard which defines fair value for those assets (and liabilities) that are re-measured and reported at fair value at each reporting period. This standard establishes a single authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value based on inputs used, and requires additional disclosures about fair value measurements. This standard applies to fair value measurements already required or permitted by existing standards.

In general, fair values determined by Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets (or liabilities). Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs utilize data points that are observable such as quoted prices, interest rates and yield curves. Fair values determined by Level 3 inputs are unobservable data points for the asset (or liability) and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset (or liability).

The following table presents information about the Foundation's investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2022 and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine such fair value:

	Fair Value Measurements Using						
	Quoted Prices		·				
	in Active	Significant					
	Markets for	Other	Significant				
Year Ended	Identical	Observable	Unobservable				
December 31,	Assets	Inputs	Inputs				
2022	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)				
\$ 6,858,888	\$ 6,858,888	\$ -	\$ -				
\$ 6,858,888	\$ 6,858,888	\$ -	\$ -				
	December 31, 2022 \$ 6,858,888	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)  \$ 6,858,888 \$ 6,858,888	Quoted Prices in Active Significant Markets for Other Year Ended Identical Observable December 31, Assets Inputs 2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) \$ 6,858,888 \$ 6,858,888 \$ -				

The fair value of the investments within Level 1 were obtained based on quoted market prices at the closing of the last business day of the fiscal year. The Treasury Bills have interest rates ranging from 3.85%-4.00% for the year ended December 31, 2022.

### **NOTE 4 - PLEDGES RECEIVABLE**

Pledges receivable at December 31, 2022, are expected to be collected as follows:

To Be Received in Less than One Year To Be Received in Two to Five Years	\$ 27,954,932 15,183,334
TOTAL PLEDGES RECEIVABLE	43,138,266
Less: Present Value Discount	(1,890,421)
Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Pledges	(1,428,000)
PLEDGES RECEIVABLE (NET)	\$ 39,819,845

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

### **NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT**

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2022:

Computer Software	\$ 2,351,757
Leasehold Improvements	1,072,625
Computer and Office Equipment	626,025
Furniture and Fixtures	 254,821
TOTAL PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT	4,305,228
Less: Accumulated Depreciation	 (3,681,360)
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (NET)	\$ 623,868

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2022, was \$144,400.

### **NOTE 6 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS**

Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31, 2022:

	Gross Carrying Amount		ccumulated nortization	Net Carrying Amount		
Subject to Amortization: Websites	\$	3,414,600	\$ (346,300)	\$	3,068,300	
TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS	\$	3,414,600	\$ (346,300)	\$	3,068,300	

Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2022, was \$346,300.

Amortization expense for the next five years and thereafter is estimated to be as follows:

### **Years Ending December 31**

2023	\$ 350,700
2024	350,700
2025	341,900
2026	337,500
2027	337,500
Thereafter	1,350,000

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

#### **NOTE 7 - GRANTS PAYABLE**

The following is a summary of grants authorized and payable at December 31, 2022:

To Be Paid in Less than One Year	\$ 27,882,057
To Be Paid in Two to Five Years	8,415,699
TOTAL GRANTS PAYABLE	36,297,756
Less: Present Value Discount	(348,201)
GRANTS PAYABLE (NET)	\$ 35,949,555

#### **NOTE 8 - LEASES**

The Foundation is a lessee in one operating lease for office space. The lease is with an affiliated charitable organization and expires in December 2024. At December 31, 2022, the Foundation recognized \$1,096,151 of ROU asset and \$1,096,151 of related lease liability for this contract that is classified as an operating lease.

Lease cost was as follows for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Operating Lease Cost \$ 553,236

Weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate were as follows for the operating lease at December 31, 2022:

Weighted-Average Lease Term	2 years
Weighted-Average Discount Rate	0.98%

The maturity of the lease liability at December 31, 2022 is as follows:

### **Years Ending December 31**

2023	\$ 553,236
2024	553,236
Total Rent Payments Less: Imputed Interest	1,106,472 (10,321)
TOTAL LEASE LIABILITY (NET)	\$ 1,096,151

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

#### **NOTE 9 - NOTE PAYABLE**

Note payable at December 31, 2022, consists of the following:

Note Payable to Digital Science Press Inc., Payable in Annual Instalments of Principal and Interest, with an Annual Interest Rate of 4.5% and with the Final Installment Due December 29, 2024

\$ 1,687,500

Future maturities of the note payable as of December 31, 2022, are as follows:

### **Years Ending December 31**

2023 2024	\$ 843,750 843,750
TOTAL	\$ 1,687,500

### **NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN**

The Foundation maintains a defined contribution pension plan, which is qualified under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan covers all full-time employees, and the plan provides for discretionary matching of up to 4% of each participant's compensation, which vests immediately. Employees may make contributions to the plan up to the maximum annual amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. Pension expense charged to operations for the year ended December 31, 2022, was \$170,828.

#### **NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS**

Services provided by affiliated organizations include production, office services, maintenance, and parking, which totaled \$473,090 for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Since the Foundation's inception in 1993 through December 31, 2022, it has received more than \$78 million in contributions from The Michael and Lori Milken Family Foundation, the Milken Family Foundation, and affiliated organizations and individuals.

### NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

#### **NOTE 12 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS**

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes at December 31, 2022:

Centers of Excellence Awards	\$	50,000
Young Investigator and Challenge Awards	13	3,933,334
Other Programs	3	3,845,000
TOTAL NET ASSETS		

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose or by the occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by the donors as follows for the year ended December 31, 2022:

\$ 17,828,334

Satisfaction of Purpose Restrictions Centers of Excellence Awards Young Investigator and Challenge Awards Other Programs	\$ 5,500,000 4,373,528 3,455,000
TOTAL NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM DONOR RESTRICTIONS	\$ 13,328,528

### **NOTE 13 - ALLOCATION OF JOINT COSTS**

The Foundation conducted direct mail campaigns and other public awareness events that included requests for contributions as well as program components. The costs of conducting these activities included joint costs totaling \$2,196,230 for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The joint costs for these activities were allocated as follows:

Program Services	\$ 1,179,025
Fundraising	1,017,205
TOTAL	\$ 2,196,230

## NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2022

### **NOTE 14 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES**

The Foundation's financial assets available for general expenditures within one year of the consolidated statement of financial position date are summarized in the following table:

Financial Assets at December 31, 2022:

Cash and Cash Equivalents \$ 31,657,698 Investments 6,858,888 Pledges Receivable (Net) 25,836,511

FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE TO MEET GENERAL EXPENDITURES WITHIN ONE YEAR

\$ 64,353,097

The Foundation regularly monitors the liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. As part of the Foundation's liquidity management, it has the policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.

The Foundation has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents and pledges receivable. General expenditures are defined as including grants to be paid within one year of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022



### AUDIT AND ASSURANCE

### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors
Prostate Cancer Foundation

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prostate Cancer Foundation (the Foundation) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and our report thereon dated August 14, 2023, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements, appears on page 1. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The consolidating statements of financial position and activities are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Green Hasson & Janks LLP

August 14, 2023 Los Angeles, California

## CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION December 31, 2022

ASSETS	 Prostate Cancer Foundation	Digital Science Press LLC	Cure	alition to Prostate Cancer	E	Eliminations	Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents Investments Pledges Receivable (Net) Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets Right-of-Use Asset (Note 8) Property and Equipment (Net) Investment in Digital Science Press LLC Intangible Assets	\$ 35,016,897 6,858,888 38,229,845 582,767 1,096,151 623,868 3,037,500	\$ 463,876 - 1,590,000 17,744 - - - 3,068,300	\$	21,925 - - - - - - -	\$	- \$ - (262,500) - - (3,037,500)	35,502,698 6,858,888 39,819,845 338,011 1,096,151 623,868
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 85,445,916	\$ 5,139,920	\$	21,925	\$	(3,300,000) \$	87,307,761
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  LIABILITIES: Accounts Payable Accrued Liabilities Grants Payable (Net) Lease Liability (Net) (Note 8) Note Payable	\$ 960,105 2,151,095 35,949,555 1,096,151 1,687,500	\$ 321,061 7,228 - - -	\$	- - - -	\$	(262,500) \$ - - - - -	1,018,666 2,158,323 35,949,555 1,096,151 1,687,500
TOTAL LIABILITIES	41,844,406	328,289		-		(262,500)	41,910,195
<b>NET ASSETS:</b> Without Donor Restrictions With Donor Restrictions	 25,773,176 17,828,334	4,811,631 -		21,925 -		(3,037,500)	27,569,232 17,828,334
TOTAL NET ASSETS	43,601,510	4,811,631		21,925		(3,037,500)	45,397,566
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS	\$ 85,445,916	\$ 5,139,920	\$	21,925	\$	(3,300,000) \$	87,307,761

### CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES Year Ended December 31, 2022

	Prostate Digital Coalition to Cancer Science Cure Prostate Foundation Press Cancer		Cure Prostate	Eliminations	Total	
REVENUES, PUBLIC SUPPORT AND OTHER INCOME: Grants and Contributions Sponsorships Other Income	\$ 66,687,367 \$ - 470,395	- 5,122,375 -	\$ 5,021 - -	\$ - \$ - -	66,692,388 5,122,375 470,395	
TOTAL REVENUES, PUBLIC SUPPORT AND OTHER INCOME	67,157,762	5,122,375	5,021	-	72,285,158	
EXPENSES: Program Services Supporting Services: Management and General Fundraising	46,656,860 4,836,223 6,364,953	3,473,892 211,852	- 1,004 -	(337,500) - -	49,793,252 5,049,079 6,364,953	
TOTAL EXPENSES	57,858,036	3,685,744	1,004	(337,500)	61,207,284	
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS	9,299,726	1,436,631	4,017	337,500	11,077,874	
Net Assets - Beginning of Year	34,301,784	3,375,000	17,908	(3,375,000)	34,319,692	
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR	\$ 43,601,510 \$	4,811,631	\$ 21,925	\$ (3,037,500) \$	45,397,566	